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PLEA AGREEMENT 
FOR OPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD. 

21 

22 
1. This constitutes the plea agreement ("Agreement") 

between OPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD., formerly Tianjin Depu (OPC) 
23 

Biotechnological and Medical Products, Inc. ("DPC TIANJIN" or 
24 

~defendant") and the Jnited States Attorney's Office for the 
25 

Central District of Cali::ornia ("tr.e USAO") and the United States 
26 

Department of Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud Section ("the 
27 

Fraud Section"), in United States v. OPC TIANJIN, a prosecution 
28 

resulting from an investigation of illegal payments by defendant 



1 DFC TIANJIN to doctors and laboratory perscf'.nel employed by 

2 government-owned hospitals in the Peo~lers Republ~= of China to 

3 obtain cr retain business in violaticn of ~he foreign Corrupt 

4 Practices Act of 1977, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 78cd-1, ~ sea. 

5 2. This Agreement is limited to the USAO and the Fraud 

6 Section, and cannctbind any other federal, state or local 

7 prcseC"..lting, ach"1linistrative, or regula"Cory authorities. This 

8 Agreement does not bind any other component of the Department of 

9 Justice, including the Tax Division, Bowever, the USAO and the 

10 Fraud Section will bring this Agreement and the cooperation of 

11 both ope T:ANJIN and its parent Diagnostic Products Corporation 

12 ("DPC N
) to the attention of other prosecuting authorities or 

13 other agencies, if requested. 

14 3. This Agreement contemplates the resolution of the 

15 criminal investigation now pending in the USAO and the Fraud 

16 Section against DPC T:ANJIN, its present or past s~bsidiaries, 

17 divisions, parent, and affiliates for any foreign payments or the 

18 accounting thereof disclosed to tte USAO or the Frau~ Section as 

19 of the date of this Agreement, but specifically excluding any 

20 such conduct not disclosed to the USAO or the Fraud Section as of 

21 that date or any conduct occurring after that date. ~his 

22 Agreement will ~ot close or preclude the ~nvestigation or 

23 prosecution of any na~ural persons, including any officers, 

24 directors, employees, stockholders, or agents of DPC TIANJIN or 

25 any such natural persons with~n any divisions, subsidiaries, or 

26 affiliates 0: DPe TIANJIN who may have been involved in any of 

27 the matters set forth in the Infor~ation or .in any other matters. 

28 
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1 4. This Agreement is entered pursuar .. t to Rule 11 (c) (1) (c) 

2 of the Federal Rules of Crimi~al Procedure. 

3 

4 Defendant gives up the righ~ to indictment by a gra~d 

5 jury and agrees to plead guilty to a one-count Information in the 

6 form attached to this agreement as Exhibit 1, or a substantially 

7 similar form, charging DPC TIANJIN with violating the Foreign 

8 Co!:"rupt Pra:::tioes Act of 1977, as amended, 15 U. s. C. § 78dd-l. 

9 6. De:endant agrees that th~s Agreement will be executed 

10 by a~ authorized corporate representative. Defendant further 

11 agrees that a Resol~tion duly adopted by the Board of Directors 

12 of DPC TIANJIN, in the form attached to this agreement as Exhibit 

13 3, or in a s~bstantially similar form, represents that the 

14 signatures on this Agreement by DPC TIANJIN and its counsel are 

15 authorized by DPC TIANJ:N's Board of Directors. 

16 7. Jefendant agrees that the statute of limitations with 

17 respect to the criminal conduct described in ttis Agreement and 

18 the Information will be tolled during the time per~od from the 

19 execution of this Agreeme~t until ninety (90) days after the 

20 sentencing of defendant. 

21 8. If the Court does not accept this Agreement pursuant to 

22 Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 11 (c) (1) (c) I then neither 

23 party will be bound by this Agreement and it will be deemed null 

24 and void. As a result, among other things, the USAO and the 

25 Fraud Section will be free to pursue a grand jury investigation 

26 and whatever prosecution they deem appropriate against defendant, 

27 any successors, and any of its present or past subsidiaries, 

28 divisions, its parent, or affiliates for any foreign payments or 
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1 the accounting thereof. In addition, defendant, its 

2 subsidiaries, its parent, and any divisions, or affiliates will 

3 be free to assert any and all substantive and procedural defenses 

4 to any grand jury investigation or prosecution. 

5 NATURE OF THE OFFF'NSE 

6 9. In order for defendant to be guilty of violating Title 

7 15, Uni~ed States Code, Section 78dd-l, as charged in the 

8 Information, the ::ollowing must be true: 

9 One: That the defendant is a corporation organized 

10 

1:' 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Two: 

Three: 

Four: 

Five: 

Six: 

under the laws of a foreign country, or a 

director, officer, director, employee, or agent 

thereof, or a stockholder acting on a domestic 

concern's behal::i 

That the defendant acted corruptly; 

That the defendant, while in the United States, 

made use of the mails or any means or 

instrumentality of interstate commerce or took any 

other act in ::urtherance of an unlawful act under 

this statute; 

That tte defendant offered, paid, promised to pay, 

or authorized the payment of any money or of 

anything of value: 

That the payment was to a foreign public official; 

That the payment was for one of four purposes: 

to influence any act or decision of the foreign 

public official: 

4 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

le 
11 

12 

Seven: 

to induce the foreign publ:c official to do or 

omit to do any act in violation of that official's 

lawful duty; 

to obtain an improper advantage; or 

to induce that foreign public official to use his 

or her influence witt a foreign government or 

instrumentality thereof to affect or inf~uence any 

act or decision of such government or 

instrumentality; and 

That the payment was made to assist the defendant 

in obtaining or retaining business for or with, or 

directing business to, any person. 

13 Defendant admits that it is, in fact, guilty of t~is offense as 

14 described in the Information. 

15 PENALTIES 

16 10. The statutory maximum sentence that the Court can 

17 impose for a violation of Title 1S, United S~a~es Code, Section 

18 78dd-l is: a fine of $2,000,000 or twice the gross gain or gross 

19 loss resulting from the offense, whichever is greatest, 15 ~.S.C. 

20 §§ 78dd-3(e), 18 G.S.C. § ~571(d); five years probation, 18 

21 U.S.C. § 3561 (c) (1); and a mandatory special assessment of $40C, 

2218 U.S.C. § 3013(a)(2)(B). 

23 FACTUAL BASIS 

24 11. Defendant agrees and stipulates that the factual 

25 allegations set forth in the Information are true and correct and 

26 accurately reflect defendant'S criminal conduct. The parties 

27 further stipulate and agree to the St~teme~t of Facts attached 

28 hereto and incorporated terein as Exhibit 2 . 
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1 WAIVER OF CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS 

2 12. By pleading guilty, defendant gives up the following 

3 rights: 

4 a) The right to persist in a plea of not guilty. 

:J b) The right to a speedy and public trial by jury. 

6 c) The right to the assistance of counsel at trial. 

7 d) ':'he right to be presumed innocent and to have the 

8 burden of proof placed on the government to prove defendant 

9 guilty beyond a reasonable doubt. 

10 e) The right to confron"::. and cross-examine witnesses 

11 against defendant. 

12 f) The right, if defenda~t wished, to testify on 

13 defendant's own behalf and present evidence in opposition to the 

14 charges, including the right to call witnesses and to subpoena 

15 those witnesses to testify. 

16 13. By pleading guilty, defendant also gives up any and all 

17 rights to pursue any affirmative defenses, Fourth Amendment or 

18 Fifth Amendment claims, and other pretrial motions that have been 

19 filed or could be filed. 

20 SENTENCING RECOMMENDATION 

21 14. Fine: Subject to t~e Court's approval of this 

22 Agreement, the parties agree, pursuant to Federal Rule of 

23 Criminal Procedure 11(c) (1) (c), that defendant's parent in the 

24 United States shall pay $2,000,000 within ten (10) business days 

2S of the time of sentenCing. Payment shall be made in the form of 

26 a cashier's check made payable to the Clerk, U.S. District Court. 

27 The parties request that defendant's judgment and co~~itment 

28 order reflect the following: 

6 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

The defendant shall cause payment of a 
criminal fine of $2,000,000 to be made to :he 
Clerk, U.S. District Co~rt. Interest on said 
fine is waived provided the fine is paid 
within ten (10) business days of the time of 
sentencing. 

15. The parties agree not to seek any adjus~ments to, or 

departures :rom, the agreed upon payment of $2,000,000 as set 

forth herein. 

16. Organizational Probaticn: The parties agree that 

organizational probation need not be ordered in this case, in 

view of DPC TIAN~IN's agreement to retain an independent 
10 

compliance monitor for a period of 36 mon~hs as discussed below 
11 

in the "FCPA Compliance Program and Monitor" section. 
12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

21 

17. Co~munity Service: The parties agree that community 

service need not be ordered in this case. 

18. Forfeiture: The parties agree that for:ei~ure need not 

be ordered in this case. 

19. Special Assessment: Defendant agrees to pay the Clerk 

of the Court for the United States District Court for t~e Central 

20. Waiver of Presentence Report: DPC TIANJIN intends, with 

the permission of the Court, to waive the requirement for a 
22 

presentence report pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 
23 

32(b) (1) (A), based on a finding by the Court that the record 
24 

contains infornation sufficient to enable the Court to 
25 

issue. However, the parties agree that in the event the Court 
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1 orders the preparation of a presentence report prior to 

2 sentencing, such order will not affect the agreements set forth 

3 herein. 

4 21. Entry of Guilty Pleas and Sentencing: The defendant 

5 intends to ask the Court's permission to combine the entry of the 

6 pleas and sentencing into one hearing, and the USAO and the Fraud 

7 Section intend to take no position with respect to this re~uest. 

8 However, the parties agree that in the event the Cour~ orders 

9 that the entry of the gu~lty pleas and sentencing hearing occur 

10 at separate hearings, such an order wil: not affect the 

11 agreemen~s set =orth herei~. 

12 CALCULATION OF FINE 

13 22. The agreement by the USAO and the Fraud Section to the 

14 $2,000,000 fine is based upon the following factors: 

15 a. By entering and fulfilling the obligations under 

16 this Agreement, defendant DPC TIANJIN demo~strates recognition 

17 and affirmative acceptanoe of responsibility for its criminal 

18 conduct. The plea underlying this Agreement reflects the 

19 voluntary disclosure of the relevant conduct made by OPC, OPC 

20 TI~NJIN's parent company, to the Fraud Section; O?C's agreement 

21 to disgorgement and prejudgment interest ~n the amount of 

22 $2,788,622 in connection with a Cease and Desist Order to be 

23 entered between the United States Securities and Exchange 

24 Commission and OPC; and its co~~itment to adopt, maintain, and 

25 independently review the remedial measures set forth herein. At 

26 the time of the disclosure, the conduct was unknown to the Fraud 

27 Section and the USAO. 

28 
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1 b. DPC voluntarily implemented certain additional 

2 compliance policies and proced~res following its discovery of the 

3 facts contained ir. the Information. By implementing an effective 

4 compliance program under this Agreement and in connec~ion with 

5 the Cease and Desist Order to be entered between the United 

6 States Securities and Exchange Commission and DPC, the company 

7 will implement additional policies and remedy past procedures in 

8 order to detect and prevent any further similar illegal conduct. 

9 c. $2,000,000 is the statutory maximum fine for a 

10 single-count violation of ~itle 15, United States Code, Section 

11 78dd-1. 

12 CONSIDERATION BY THE OFFICE 

13 23. In exchange for the corporate guilty plea of defendant 

14 DPe TIANJIN and the complete f'.llfillment of all its obligations 

15 under this Agreement, the USAO and the Fraud Section agree not to 

16 file additional criminal charges agains~ DPC TIANJ!N, any 

17 successors, or any of its present and former subsidiaries, 

18 diviSions, parent, or affiliates, for any foreign payments or the 

19 accounting thereof disclosed to the USAO or the Fraud Section as 

20 of the date of this Agreement. 

21 DEFENDANT I S OBLIGATIONS 

22 24. Defendant agrees: 

23 

24 

a) 

b) 

To plead guilty as set forth in this Agreement. 

To not knowingly and willfully fail to abide by 

25 all sentencing stipulations contained in this Agreement. 

26 c) To not knowingly and willfully fail to: (i) appear 

27 as ordered for all court appearances, and (ii) obey any other 

28 ongoing court order in this matter. 
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1 

2 

d) 

e) 

To not co~.i~ any crime. 

To not knowingly and willfully fail to be truthful 

3 at all times with the Court. 

4 

5 

f) 

g) 

To pay the appl~cable fine and special assessment. 

To retain and arrange for payment by itself or its 

6 parent co~pany in the United States for an independent compliance 

7 expert, as described more fully in the FCPA Compliance Program 

8 and Monitor section below. 

9 25. Defendant further agrees to cooperate fully with the 

10 USAO and the Fraud Section, and, as directed by the OSAO and the 

11 Fraud Section, with any other federal, state, local or foreign 

12 law enforcement agency in connection with the matters described 

13 in the Information. This cooperation requires defendant to: 

14 a) Provide full disclosure of all information known 

15 to defendant or its outside counsel as of the date of this 

16 Agreement of payments to foreign officials and the accounting 

17 thereof. 

18 b) Produce voluntarily all documents, records, or 

19 other tangible evidence relating to such payments about which the 

20 USAO or the Fraud Section, or their deSignee, inquires. 

2l c) Recommend orally and in writing that all DPC 

22 TIANJIN officers, directors, employees, and agents cooperate 

23 fully wi~h any investigation or prosecu~ion conducted by the OSAO 

24 or the Fraud Section relating to such payments, including 

25 appearing for interviews and testimony in the Onited States. 

26 d) Provide access to copies of original documents and 

27 records relating to such payments. 

28 
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1 el Provide access to defendant's outside account~ng 

2 consultants as well as the records, reports, and documents of 

3 those outside accounting consultants relating to such payments 

4 disclcsed to the USAO or the Fraud Section as of the date cf th~s 

5 Agreernent. 

6 f) Provide all memoranda of interviews compiled and 

7 prepared by DPe's and DPe TIANJIN's counsel, outside counsel, 

8 consultants, accountants or other agents of interviews with 

9 individuals relating to such payments disclosed to the USAO or 

10 ~he Fraud Sec~ion as of the date of this Agreement. 

11 g) Provide full disclosure to appropriate law 

12 enforce~ent agencies in the People's Republic of China and to 

13 cooperate fully with those agenc~es with respect to the conduct 

14 i~ the People's Republic of China disclosed .to the USAO or the 

15 Fraud Section as of the date of this Agreement, as directed by 

16 the Department. DPC TIANJIN will disclose to the Fraud Section 

17 the extent to which it has already disclosed these facts and 
-

18 reTIediated violations of Chinese law with the Government of the 

19 People's Republic of China so the Fraud Section can determine 

20 whether it's disclosure is adequate. 

21 rep1\. COt-1PLIANCE PROGRAM AND MONITOR 

22 26. The obligation of DPe TIANJIN refere~ced in paragraph 

23 24(g) above to retain and arrange for payment for a Monitor means 

24 that DPC TIANJIN shall undertake all of the duties imposed upon 

25 it in this section. 

26 27. DPC TIANJIN agrees for a period of at least 36 months 

27 from May 19, 2005, it will retain and pay for an outside, 

28 independent compliance expert (the "Monitor") (who may be an 

11 



1 individual, partnership or other entity, in=l~ding outside 

2 counsel) , selected and paid for by DPe 'Li:ANJ:N ar.c acceptable to 

3 the Fraud Section. It shall be a cC:1dition of the Monitor's 

4 retention that the Monitor is independent of DPC TIANJIN and that 

5 no attorney-client rela.tionship shall be formed between them. If 

6 DPC TIANJIN, the Monitor, or any other party or tribunal asserts 

7 or determines that co~~unica~ions between the Monitor and OPC 

8 TIANJIN are protected by the attorney-client privilege or that 

9 documents created or reviewed by DPC TIAN,JIN or the Mor-itor in 

10 connection wit~ the Monitor's work are protected by the work 

11 product doctrine, then DPC TIANJIN shall waive only as to the 

12 u.s. Department of Justice ("DOJ H
), the USAO, and the u.S. 

13 Securities and Exchange Commission (" SEC") any protections 

14 afforded to such comrr,unicaticns and documents concerning the 

15 Monitor's work. Any revocation of these waivers shall constitute 

16 a breach of this Agreement. The sharing of such comrrcunications 

17 by the Monitor with the DOJ and the SEC is no~ intended to 

18 constitute a waiver of any privilege under any federal or state 

19 law that would shield from disclosure to any other third party 

20 any such co~munications. 

21 28. The Monitor shall: 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(a) monitor DPC TIANJIN's complian=e with this 

Agreement; 

(b) monitor DPC TIANJIN's implementation of and 

adherence to policies and procedures relating to 

FePA compliance; 

(c) ensure that the policieS ar:d procedures are 

appropriately designed to accomplish their goals; 

12 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

(dl report to the Department, in coordination with ~he 

SEC, on at least a semi-ann~al basis and between 

thirty (30) and forty-=ive (45) calendar days 

before the end of the Monitor's ~er~, as to DPC 

TIANJIN's compliance with this Agreement; and 

(el coordinate with the SEC and provide information 

7 about DPe TIANJIN as requested by that agency. 

8 29. JPC TIANJIN agrees that the ~onitor may disclose its 

9 reports to the SEC and, as dire6ted by the Fraud Section, to any 

10 other federal, state or foreign law enforcement or regulatory 

11 agency in furtherance of an investigation of any matters related 

12 to payments to foreign officials and any matters relating to any 

13 other transaction that has been or is discovered by, or brought 

14 to the attention of, the Fraud Section or the SEe in connection 

15 with the Fraud Section's investigation of DPC TIANJIN. During 

16 the Monitor's term, no amendments or changes will be made to the 

17 policies and procedures relating to FCPA compliance policies 

18 without the prior approval of the Monitor. 

19 30. DPC TIANJI~ agrees that it hereafter will maintain an 

20 effective compliance and ethics program designed to detect and 

21 prevent violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and of 

22 other applicable foreign bribery laws. DPe ~IAN:!N's program 

23 shall include, at a minimum, the following components: 

24 a) A clearly articulated corporate policy against 

25 violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and 

26 

27 

28 

other applicable anti-bribery laws and the 

establishment of compliance standards and procedures to 

be followed by its officers, directors, employees, 

13 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

b) 

c) 

d) 

agents, consultants, joint ventures, distributors, and 

sub-cor.tractors that are reasonably capable of reducing 

the prospect of v~olative conducti 

The assignment to one or more senior DPC TIANJIN 

corporate officials of responsibility for oversight of 

compliance with policies, sta~dards, and procedures 

established pursuant to the Agreement between the Frauci 

Section, the USAO and DPe TIANJIN, da~ed May 19, 2005. 

Such officials shall have the authority and 

responsibility to implement and utilize monitoring and 

auditing systems reasonably designed to detect criminal 

conduct by the company's employees and other agents, 

including, where appropriate, the retention of outside 

counsel and independent auditors to conduct 

investigations and audits. In addition, such officials 

shall be charged with proposing any necessary 

modifications to the compliance program to respond to 

detected violations and to prevent further similar 

violations, subject to approval by the Monitor, as 

otherwise required herein; 

Clearly articulated corporate proc~dures to ensure that 

OPC TIANJIN exercises due care to assure that 

substantial discretionary authority is not delegated to 

indiViduals whom the defendant knows, or should know 

through the exercise of due diligence, have a 

propensity to engage in illegal activities; 

Clearly articulated co~p0rate procedures to assure that 

all necessary and prudent precautions are taken to 

14 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2: 
22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

e) 

f) 

g) 

ensure that DPe TIANJIN has for~ed business 

rela~ionships with reputable and quali:iec agents, 

consultants and other representatives for purposes of 

business development and lobbying in foreign 

jur~sdictions and with reputable and qualified sub

contractors for projects ir. which foreigr. govern~ents 

or public international organizations, or 

instrumentalities thereo~, are the ultimate customers 

or beneficiaries. Such poi icy shall reguire that 

evidence of such a "due diligence" inquiry be 

maintained in DPe TIANJIN's files; 

The imple~entation of appropriate disciplinary 

mechanisms, including as appropriate, discipline of 

individuals responsible for the failure to detect a 

violation of the law or of compliance with DPe 

TIANJIN's policies, standards, and procedures; 

The establis~~ent of a reporting syste~ by which 

officers, employees, agents, consultants, and other 

representatives, as well as sub-contractors, ma¥ report 

suspected criminal conduct without fear of retribution 

or going through the chain of command or reporting the 

same to the employee's, agent's, representative's, or 

sub-contractor's immediate managers; 

DPC TIANJIN will, using objective measures, determine 

the regions or coun~ries in which it operates that pose 

higher risks of corr~ption. It will, on a periodic 

baSis, conduct rigorous FCPA audits of its operations 

15 



1 

2 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

in such regions or countries, which audits shal: 

include: 

.; 
.J,.. detailed audits of the operating unit's books and 

records, with specific attention to payments and 

commissions to agents, consultants, and sub-

contractors and contributions to jOint ven~ures; 

~~. audits of selected agents, consultants, sub-

contractors, and joint ventures, where authorized 

by the governing contract or retention agreement; 

iii. interviews wit~ relevant employees, consultant, 

agents, sub-contractors, and joint venture 

partners. 

MERGER OR SALE OF DPe TIANJIN 

14 31. ope TIANJIN agrees that in the event it, or its parent 

15 ope, sells or merges all of OPC TIANJIN's b~siness operations as 

16 they exist as of the date of this Agreement to a single 

17 transferee or related group of transferees, whether such sale is 

18 structured as a stock or asset sale, OPC TIANJIN shall include in 

19 any contract for sale or merger a provision binding the purchaser 

20 or successor fully to the obligations described in this Agree~ent 

21 but solely with respect to the business operations of ope 

22 TIANJIN, including the provisions set forth in the FCPA 

23 Compliance Program and Monitor Section and this section. 

24 a. In the event of any such sale or merger of DPC 

25 TIANJIN, the purchaser or successor agrees that the Monitor shall 

26 continue his or her duties as described in the provisions set 

27 forth in the FCPA Compliance and Monitor Section above. In the 

28 event DPC TIANJIN has not selected a Monitor by the effective 

16 



1 date of any sale or merger, the Moni~o=·shall be selected by the 

2 Fraud Section. The Monitor shall be subject ~o the same 

3 restrictions as set forth in paragraph 27 above. Subject to 

4 Fraud Section approval, the Monitor shall be allowed to h~re 

5 others to assist with it's duties. Within one hundred eighty 

6 (lSO) days of being retained the Monitor shall conduct an 

7 appropriate review of the effectiveness of the purchaser's or 

8 successor's program for compliance with applicable ?CPA and other 

9 anti-b=ibery laws and report its findings to the fraud Section. 

10 b. If after reviewing the preliminary report the 

11 Fraud Section in its sole discretion determines that the 

12 p~rchaser or successor has an effective FCPA/anti-bribery 

13 compliance program, then the Monitor shall wi~hin one hundred 

14 eighty days (180) of issuing its preliffiinary assessrrent to the 

15 Fraud Section report back to the Fraud Section regarding the 

16 efficacy of the integration by the purchaser or successor of OPC 

17 TIANJIN into the purchaserts or successor's existing FCPA/anti-

18 bribery compliance program, including but not limited to the 

19 implementation of FCPA train~ng for appropriate DPC TIANJIN 

20 employees (the "im:.egration report"). If after reviewing the 

2: integration report the Fraud Section in its sole discretion 

22 determines that the p~rchaser or successor has effectively 
. 

23 integrated OPC TIANJI~ into its existing FCPA/anti-bribery 

24 compliance program, the purchaser or successor will no longer be 

25 bound by the FCPA Compliance and Monitor provisions of this 

26 Agreement. 

27 c. If after reviewing the preliminary report the 

28 Fraud Section in its sole discretion determines that the 

17 



1 purchaser or successor does not have an effective FCPA/anti-

2 b!:'ibery compliance program, then the purchaser or S'..lccessor 

3 shall, as noted above, remain bound by the terms of this 

~ Agreement but solely with respect to the business operations of 

5 DPC TIANJIN. In addition, the purchaser or successor shall 

6 retain the Mor.~tor for three years, less any time ~hat the 

7 Monitor nay have consulted with DPC TIANJIN before ~ny p~rchase 

8 or sale of OPC TIANJIN. v1ithin one-hundred and eighty days (180) 

9 of issuing its preliminary assessment to the Fraud Section, the 

10 Monitor shall report to the Department regarding the purchaser's 

21 or successor's efforts to comply with the provisions in the FCPA 

12 Compliance Program and Monitor Sec~ion of this Agreement and with 

13 the condit~ons specified in this paragraph. 

14 d. If, as part of or in connection with any sale or 

15 merger of DPC TIANJIN, all of DPC TIAN~IN's business operations 

16 in the People's Republic of China are terminated, the 

17 requirements of this section 31 shall not apply. 

16 OBLIGATIONS OF THE USAO AND THE FRAUD SECTION 

19 32. If defendant DPC TIANJIN complies fully with all 

20 defendant's obligations under ~his Agreement, the USAO and the 

21 Fraud Section agree: 

22 a) To abide by all sentencing stipulations contained 

23 in this Agreement. 

24 b) Not to further prosecute defendant, any 

25 successors, and any of its past or present subsidiaries, 

26 divisions, pare~t, or affiliates for violations of the Foreign 

27 Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-1, et 

28 ~., disclosed to the Fraud Section as of the date of this 

18 



1 Agreement. Defendant understands that the GSAO and the Fraud 

2 Section are free to prosecute defendant, any successors, and any 

3 of its present or past subsidiaries, d~visions, parent, or 

4 affiliates for any other unlawful past conduct or any unlawful 

5 conduct that occurs after that date. 

6 c) In connection with defendant's sentencing, to 

7 bring to the Court's attention the nature and extent of 

8 defendant's cooperation. 

9 d) To bring this Agreement and both DPe TIANJIN's and 

10 its parent company's cooperation to the attention of other 

11 prosecuting aut~orities or other agencies, if requested, 

12 including but not limited to other componen~s of the Department 

13 of Justice, the u.s. Department of Health and Human Services, the 

14 C.S. Department of Defense, and the U.S. Food and Drug 

15 Administration. 

16 BREACH OF AGREEMENT 

17 33. If defendant, at any time between.the execution of this 

18 Agreement and the completion of defendant's cooperation pursuant 

19 to this Agreement, knowingly and willfully violates or fails to 

20 perform any of defendant's obligations under th~s Agreement (~a 

21 breachH
), the USAO or the Fraud Section may declare this 

22 Agreement breached. If the USAO or tte Fraud Section declares 

23 the Agreement breached, and the Court finds such a breach to have 

24 occurred, defendant will not be able to withdraw defendant's 

25 guilty plea, and the USAO and the Fraud Section will be relieved 

26 of all its obligations under this Agreement. In particular: 

27 a) The USAO and the Fraud Section will no longer be 

28 bound by any agreements concerning sentencing and will be free to 

19 



1 seek any sentence up to the s~atutory ~aximum for the crime to 

2 which defendant has pleaded g~ilty. 

3 b) The USAO and the Fraud Section wi:l no longer be 

4 bound by any agreements regarding criminal prosecution, and w~:l 

5 be free to prosecute defendant fcr any charges that the USAO or 

6 the Fraud Section would otherwise have been obligated not to 

7 prosecute pursuant to this Agreeme~:. 

8 c) The USAO and ~he Fraud Section will be free to 

9 prosecute defendant for making false statements, obstruction of 

10 justice, and perjury based on any knowingly false or misleading 

11 statement by defendant. 

12 d) The USAO and the Fraud Section will no longer be 

13 bound by any agreement regarding the use of statements, tangible 

14 eVidence, or information provided by defendant, and will be free 

15 to use any of those in any way in any investigation, prosecution, 

16' or civil or administrative action. Defendant will not be able to 

17 assert either (1) that those statements, tangible evidence, or 

18 information were obtained in violation of tte Fifth Amen~~ent 

19 privilege against compelled self-incrimination, or (2) any claim 

20 under the United States Constitution, any statute, Rule 11(f)of 

21 the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 410 of the Federal 

22 Rules of Evidence, or any other federal rule, that statements, 

23 tangible evidence, or information provided by defendant before or 

24 after the signing of this Agreement, or any leads derived 

25 therefrom, should be inadmissible. 

26 34. Following a knowing and willful breach of this 

27 Agreement by defendant, should the USAO or the Fraud Section 

28 elect to purs~e any criminal charge or any civil or 

20 



1 administrative action that was not filed as a result of this 

2 Agreement, then: 

3 a) Defendant agrees that any applicable statute of 

4 limitat~ons is tolled between the date of de:endant's signing of 

5 this Agreement and the discovery by the USAO or tte Fraud Section 

6 of any knowing and willful breach by defendant. 

7 b) Defendant gives up all defer.ses based on the 

8 statute of limitations, any claim of preindictment delay, cr any 

9 speedy trial claim with respect to any such prosecution or 

10 action, except to the extent that such defenses existed as of the 

11 date of defendant's signing of this Agreement. 

12 LIMITED MUTUAL WAIVER OF APPEAL AND COLLATERAL ATrACK 

13 35. Defendant DPC TIANJIN understands that the law gives 

14 defendants the right to appeal sentences imposed. Defendant DPC 

15 TIANJIN, however, gives up the right to appeal any sentence 

16 imposed by the Court, and the manner in which the sentence is 

17 determined, provided that defendant DPC TIANJIN is sentenced to 

18 not more than a $2,000,000 fine and a $400 special assessment. 

19 Defendant also gives up any right to bring a post-conviction 

20 collateral attack on the sentence, except a post-conviction 

21 collateral attack based on a claim of ineffective assistance of 

22 counsel. 

23 36. The USAO and the Fraud Section give up their rights to 

24 appeal the sentence imposed by the Court and the manner in which 

25 the sentence is determined, provided that the Court sentences 

26 defendant DPe TIANJIN to pay a total of $2,000, 000 in -fines and a 

27 $ 4 00 special assessment. 

28 
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~ 37. Defendant DPC T:ANJIN agrees that if, at or before tte 

2 time of sentencing r defendant DPC ':'IAN,JIN be::"ieves that the iJSAC 

3 or the Fraud Section has acted in violation of tt~s Agreement in 

4 any way, defendant DPC TIANJIN will make that claim at or befere 

5 the time of sentencing. If defendant does not objec~ at or 

6 before the time of sentencing, defendant DPC TIANJIN gives up any 

7 right to later make that claim in chal::"enging the conviction or 

'8 sentence o~ appeal or collateral attack, except in a collateral 

9 attack raising a claim of ineffective assistance cf counsel. 

10 SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

11 38. The Court is not a party to this Agree~ent and need not 

12 accep~ it. However, this Agreement will be presented to the 

13 Court under Federal Rule of Crim.inal Procedure 11 (c) (1; (c) and, 

14 pursuant to that Rule, the Court may either accept or reject the 

15 Agreement or may defer its decision as to the acceptance or 

16 rejection until there has been an opportunity to consider the 

17 presentence report. The rights of defendant and of the ~SAO and 

18 the Fraud Section should the Court reject this Agreement are set 

19 forth in paragraph 8 supra. 

20 39. This Agreement applies only to crimes relating to the 

21 payments to foreign officials co~~itted by defendant and any 

22 subsidiaries, divisions; parent, or affiliates of defendant, has 

23 no effect on any proceedings against any defendant not expressly 

24 mentioned herein, and shall no~ preclude any past, present, or 

25 future forfeiture actions except as express:y set forth above. 

26 / / / 

27 

28 
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1 NO ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS 

2 40. Except as set forth herein, there are ~o promises, 

3 understa~dings or agreeme~ts between the USAO or the Fraud 

4 Sectio~ and defendant or defe~dant's counsel with respec~ to the 

5 subject ~atter hereof. Nor may any additional agreeme~t, 

6 u~derstanding or condition be entered into unless in a writing 

7 signed by all parties or on the record in court. 

8 / / / 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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1 

2 This agreemen~ is effec~ive upon signature by defendant and 

3 an Assistan~ United States Attorney. 

4 AGREED AND ACCEPTED 

5 L~ItED STATES ATTORNEY'S OFFICE 
FOR THE 'CENTRAL DISTRIGT OF CALIFORNIA 

6 
DEBRA WONG YANG 

7 United States Attorney 

8 

9 STEVEN D. CLYME~ Date 
Special ~sis~ant United States Attorney 

10 Chief, Criminal Division 

11 

12 JOSHUA R. HOCHBERG 
Chief, Fraud Section 

13 Criminal Division 

15 

16 

MARK F. MENDELSOHN 
Deputy Chief, Fraud Section 
Criminal Division 

17 ~~.~~'-<.. 
18 AD IANo:MEBANE 

19 
Trial Attorney, Fraud Section 
Criminal Division 
United States Department of Justice 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

26 

'27 

28 

24 

Date 

Date 



Dec (TIANJIN) CO. LTD., 

Oilt.~ 

04te 
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL 

Along with other members of my firm, I am counsel for DPC 

(TI~~JIN) CO. LTD. In connection with such representation, we 

have examined relevant DPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD. documents, and 

have discussed this Agreement with the authorized representative 

of DPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD. Based on our review of the foregoing 

materials and discussions, we are of the opinion that: 

1. Michael Ziering, Chairman of DPC {TIANJIN) CO. LTD., 

is duly authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of 

DPe (TIANJIN) CO. LTD. 

2. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, 

executed and delivered on behalf of DPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD., and 

is a valid and binding obligation of DPe (TIANJIN) co. LTD. 

Further, we have carefully reviewed every part of this 

Agreement with the chairman of DPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD. We have 

fully advised the chairman of DPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD.'s rights, 

of possible defenses, of the Sentencing Guidelines' provisions, 

and of the consequences of entering into this Agreement. To my 

knowledge, DPe (TIANJIN) CO. LTD.'s decision to enter into this 

Agreement is an informed and voluntary one. 

d%U 
Ira H. Raphaelson 
O'Melveny & Myers. L.L.P. 

Date 
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CHAIRMAN'S CERTIFICA~E 

I have read this agreement and care!ully revie~ed every 

part of it with counsel for ope (TIANJrN) co. LTD. I understand 

the terms of this Agreement and voluntarily agree, on behalf of 

DPC (TIANJIN) co. LTD., to each of the terms. Before Signing 

this Agreement, I consulted with the counsel for DPe (TIANJIN) 

co. LTD. Counsel fully advised me of OPC (T!ANJIN) CO. LTD.'s 

rights, of poss~ble defenses, of the Sentenc~ng Guidelines l 

provisions, and of the consequences of entering into this 

Agreement. No promises or inducements have been made other than 

those contained in this Agreement. Furthermore, no one has 

threatened or forced me, or to my knowledge any person 

authorizing this Agreement on behalf of O~C (TIANJIN) CO. LTD., 

in any way to enter into this Agre~ent. I am a~so satisfied 

with counsel's representation in this matter. I certify that I 

am a director and chairman of DPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD., and that I 

have been duly authorized by DPe (T1ANJIN) CO. LTD. to execute 

this plea agreement on behalf of OPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD. 
I 

DPe (T'!ANJIN) CO. mo. 

BY: ~J~G ~ 

DA'tE 
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ACTION BY WJUTrEN CONSENT OF 
TBE50LES~BOLDEROF 

DPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD. 

The. undersigned, being the sole shareholder (referred to I!.S "In'VestDr") ofDPC 
(TlANJIN) CO. LID., B.Cting pursuant to the Compmyt/J Amended and Restatcrl Articles 
of Assoc:iation ~ September 30, 1997 (the "Articles of Association',). docs bereby 
take the following action md approves tho {ollowlIlg resolutions by written consent: 

RESOLVED, that purSWlnt to Article 17 of me A:rtic1c::s of Association. the 
Investor bereby mnoves aU i.I:u:umbenl: directors ofllie Company fT;Qm office and hereby 
e1ex::t& the following pc::rson!l to serve as directots of the Company: Michael Zie::ring. Ira 
Ziming and Blli ~1; 

RESOLVED FURTHElt. tha.t the iUCIllUbcnt Choinnan and Vice Chain::nan of the 
Company are hereby removed from office aDd that Michael Ziering is hereby appointed 
Chairm.an and Ira. Zieri.ng is hereby appointai Vice Chairman in accordance with Article 
19 of the .Articles of Association and, in aceordance with Artic]e 20 of the Attil;les of 
Assoc:ia1ion, Miehael Ziering. Cbairm.an. or Ira Zieriag, Vice Chaimtan (if the Chainnan 
is llnahlc: to perfotm bi, duties) sh.ill be the legal rc:pn:sc:rxh.tivc: of the Company, amd 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the OffiCCl11 of the Company shall give all required 
notices of me n:m.oval and election of direct'"' ang officetll pUTSuant hereto in 
accord.mGe with Articles 18 and 19 Qfthe Articles of A~SCleiation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undc::rs1gned has executed this written consent as 
oftbis l-r day of May. 2005. 

DIAGNOSTIC PRODUCTS CORPORA nON 

By. ____ ~~~~~~--~--~~--~ 
Mil: "enng, CbiefExecutivc Offic:cr and 

2 

legal represeots.ti1Je of Investor 
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CERTIFICA nON 

L ~ h- 8 ct.ciCJ§ , hereby certify that I am the duly elected SecretaI)' ofDPC 

(TlANJIN) CO. LTD.; that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of resolutions 

duly adopted by the Board of Dire(:tors of said Cotporation by unanimous wri tten 

consent; that such resolutions have not been rescinded or revoked; and that the foregoing 

resolutions are not contrary to any provisions in the Articles of Association of DPe 

(TIANJIN) CO. LID. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have heretmto signed my name as Secretary of said 

Corporation this [' rt. day of M ct v 

;f~~ 
Secretary 

,2005. 
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ACTION BY UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

DPC (fIAN.llN) CO. LTD. 

The undersigned, being all of the directors ofDPC (TIANJIN) CO, LTD .. acting 
pursuant to Article 30 of the Company's Amended and Restated Articles of Association 
(the "Articles of Association") do hereby take the following actlon and approve the 
following resolutions by unanimous written consent: 

WHEREAS, Chapter 5 of the Company's Amended and Restated Articles of 
Association requires the Company to have a general manager and such other officers as 
the Board may from time to time determine; and 

WHEREAS, it is deemed advisable to appoint such officers; 

NOW, TI-IEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the current general manager and 
officers of the Company are hereby removed from office and that the follov.ring persons 
are elected to the offices set forth opposite their respective names: 

General Manager -
President -
Secretary -

Bill Kozel 
Ira Ziering 
Fritz Backus 

WHEREAS, the Company's sole shareholder, Diagnostic Products Corporation, 
has negotiated a plea agreement with the Department of Justice ("DOT') to settle the 
DOJ's investigation of the Company; and 

WHEREAS, the directors have bad the opportunity to review the proposed plea 
agreement and to consult with counsel regarding such agreement and the Special 
Committee of the Board of Directors of Diagnostic Products Corporation has approved 
the ex.ecution of the plea agreement; be it 

RESOLVED, that DPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD., which has been the subject of an 
investigation by the United States Department of Justice in connection with commission 
payments made to physicians and laboratory personnel employed by government-ovmed 
hospitals in the People's Republic of China, consents to a settlement of the investigation 
and will, in the Central District of California, enter a plea of guilty to a one count 
Information charging DPC (TI.ANJIN) CO. LTD., with violating the Foreign Corrupt 
Practices Act, Title 15, United States Code, Section 78dd~ I; and 

REsot VED FURTHER, that the Chairman or Vice Chainnan of this Corporation 
be, and each hereby is, authorized to waive indictment and enter a plea of guilty to the 
Information substantially in such form as reviewed by this Board of Directors; and 

30 
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:RESOLVED FURTHER th31 thE:; ChainnaD orVj,ce Cb:a..irm.an o!thls Cocporation 
be, and each 'h=tt;by is. antb.ot:i:zed to exec:.u:te tbJ: fk:a ~ on behalf ofths 
Corpo:nttiMl subsUr:n1ially in SQI:h form IS re~ 'by this Board cf~ors. 

IN 'Wl1"NESS Wl1'E.REOP, thl! UDcl.r:Inrlgned ba.ve ex~ this UtI.1Il'imous 
W'rittm Consenfas tlfthis ,'6 • day arMa)', 2005. 

MJJl~DU= 

Bill Kozd. DIrector 
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RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Chainnan or Vice Chalnnan of this Corporation 
be) and each hereby is, authorized to execute the Plea Agreement on behalf of the 
Corporation substantially jn such form as reviewed by this Board ofDirecto~. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Unanimous 
Written Consent as of this I "a +"1 day of Ma)', 2005. 

Michael Ziering, Chairman and Director 

Jra Zi~ Chairman and Director 

Bill Kozel) Director 
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RESOl.VED FURn~ER, lha1 the Chairman or Via: Chairman of this Cctp:JrauOtl 
be, aJld each ~by is, aulhcrizccl 10 ~cC\l\e the Plea Awecmenl OIl bdla.lf of the 
Corporation sabslantiaJly in such form a .. revie.wed by !his Board. of Din::cton.. 

IN 'WJTNESS WHE~E.OF. the und.c:njgned have c,;ecutc& this Unarumous 
Wricten Co.nseJ1t as of this ltfi'\ da~ of Mil" 2005. 
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EXHIBIT "I" 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COCRT 

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CA~IFORN:A 

10 NITED STATES OF AMERICA, CR 05-

11 

12 v. 

13 DPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD., 

14 Defendant. 

15 

16 

IH.fQBl.:18IIQH. 

[15 U.S.C. § 78dd-l: Foreig 
Corrupt Practices Act] 

17 The United States Attorney charges: 

18 [15 U.S.C. § 78dd-1J 

19 At all times relevant to this Infc=w.ation: 

20~. INTRODUCTION 

21 1. Diagnostic Products Corporation ("DPC N
) was a U.S. 

22 orporatio~ engaged in providing immunodiagnostic systems and 

23 inmunochemistry kits throughout t~e world and maintained its 

24 rincipal place of business i~ Los Angeles, California. OPC was 

25 n "issueru within the meaning of the Foreign Corrupt Practices 

26 ct, 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-l. As an issuer, DPC regularly filed its 

27 financial statements with the U.S. Securities and Exchange 

28 ornrr.ission. Defendant DPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD., formerly Tianjin 



1 epu (DPC) Biotechnological and Medical Products, Inc. ["DPe 

2 IANJIN"] was a wholly-owned subsidiary of DPC that had its 

3 rincipal place of business in Tianjin, China. Defendant DPC 

4 IANJI~ acted as an agent of DPC within the meaning of the 

5 Corrupt Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78do-1. Defendant DPC 

6 IANJIN's f~nancial resul~s were a component of t~e consolidated 

7 financial statements included in DPC's fi:ings with the U.S. 

8 Securities and Exchange Commission. 

9 2. Defendant DPe TIANJIN's main business operat~ons were 

10 0 produce and sell DPC ~IANJIN's immunodiagnostic systems, 

11 immunochemistry ki~s, and other medical equipment. The main 

12 source of revenue of defendant DPC TIANJIN was from sales of its 

13 i~munoassays (test ki~s), which were utilized to identify and 

14 easure medically significant chemical substances. The cli~ical 

15 pplications of these immunoassays related to the diagnosis and 

16 .anagement of thyroid, reproductive, and cardiac disorders; 

17 infectious diseases; anemia; diabetes; and certain types of 

18 _ancer. 

19 

20 

3. The Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 ("FCPA") , as 

mended, 15 U.S.C. §§ 78dd-1, et sec:;:., prohibited payments to 

21 foreign government officials to obtain or retain business. 

22 

23 PAYMENTS TO FOREIGN GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS 

24 ommission Pa • ents 

25 4. At least as early as late 1991 and continuing through 

26 n or about December 12, 2002, defendant DPC TIANJIN made cash 

27 
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1 oITmission payments to laboratory pers~nnel and doctors e~ployed 

2 y hosp:tals owned by the government of the People's Republic cf 

3 hina (the "hospitals U
) to obtain and retai~ certain business 

4 'nvolving the sale of immunodiagnostic systems, imrr.unochemistry 

5 kits, and othe~ medical equipment. The hospita~s were 

6 ins~rumen~alities of the government of the People's Republ~c cf 

7 hina, and the laboratory personnel and doctors were "foreign 

8 ffi:::::.ials" as that term is defined in the FCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-

9 l(f) (1) (A). 

10 

11 

12 

5. Defendant DPC TIANJIN entered into sales agreements and 

urchase orders with certain of these hospitals in the People's 

epublic of China for imrnunodiagnostic systems, immunochemistry 

13 kits, and other medical equipment. The practice of entering into 

14 such agreements was authorized by ~he General Manager of 

15 efendant OPC TIANJIN, on behalf of the defendant. 

16 6. Although defendant DPC TIANJIN was a major provider in 

17 he People's Republic of China of im."t1unodiagnostic systems, 

18 immunochemistry kits, and other medical equipment, there were 

19 ther manufacturers and suppliers in the People's Republic of 

20 hina with whom defendant DPC TIANJIN conpeted. In order to : 

21 b~ain and retain business with these hospitals for the sales of 

22 immunodiagnostic systems, immunochemistry kits, and other medical 

23 quipment, defendant DPC TIANJIN, acting through its officers and 

24 gents, entered into sales agreements with people employed by the 

25 ospitals -- usually the laboratory heads or assistants --

26 hereby these employees would receive commissions on defendant 

27 
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1 PC TIANJIN's s2les of immunodiagnostic systems, imm~nochemist~y 

2 kits, and other medical equipment (hereinafter referred to as the 

3 "commission payments"). The commission payments were generally 

4 3-5%, but sometimes as high as 20%, of the gross sales ge~e=ated 

5 y the contracts. The responsible officers of defendant DPC 

6 IANJIN understood that the hospitals would not have entered into 

7 r maintained their business with the defendant if such 

8 ~ommission payments had not beer. made. 

9 7. The General Manager of defendant DPC TIANJIN authorized 

10 and deliveries of the commission payments, in cash, as well as 

11 y mail and wire transfers. 

12 8. From in or about late 1991, through on or about 

13 DeceIT~er 12, 2002, defendant DPC TIANJIN made commission payments 

14 otaling approximately $1,623,326 to laboratory department heads 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

nd assistants in 

Date 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

2000 

several hospitals in China, as follows: 

Amount of Comrr.i ssion Payments 

$6,349 

$33,159 

$42,340 

$37,724 

$88,433 

$97,058 

$121, 446 

$140,934 

$180,940 

$262,487 
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1 

2 

2001 

2002 
-

$301,305 

$311,151 

3 ~uthorization and Recordina of the Pavne~ts 

4 9. Oefendan~ OPC TIANJIN recorded the co~~ission paYT.,ents 

5 ~ its books and records as "sel~ing expenses. H ope regularly 

6 incorporated defendant OPC TIANJIN's sell:ng expenses amount into 

7 its consolidated financial statenents which then were included in 

8 filings to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. The 

9 -eneral Manager and Deputy General Manager of defendant DPC 

10 IANJIN regularly prepared and submitted to OPC reports 

11 containing defendant JPC TIANJIN's financial statements. 

12 Defendant DPe TIANJIN routinely sent these reports by electrcnic 

13 ail message and facsimile to ope's principal place of business 

14 in Los Angeles, California. 

15 10. The General Manager of defendant ope TIANJIN authorized 

16 he practice of paying the commission payments tc the employees 

17 f the hospitals. The General Manager of defendant ope TIANJIN 

18 Iso approved and caused to be approved the budgets for sales 

19 xpenses of DPe TIANJIN, whfch included the ccmmission payments 

20 hat OPC TIANJIN intended to pay to the employees of the 

21 ospitals in the following quarter or year. Defendant DPe 

22 IANJIN caused approval of the proposed budgets to be sent by 

23 elephone, facsimile, and electronic mail from Los Angeles, 

24 alifornia, to Tianjin, China. 

25 1/1 

26 

27 
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1 FOREIGN CORRUPT PRACTICES .Zl,CT VIOLATION 

2 11. In or about November 2002, ~~ t~e Central District of 

3 alifornia and elsewhere, defe~dant, OPC TIANJIN used electron1c 

4 ail and ether mea~s and instrunentalities of interstate co~erce 

5 ~orruptly in furthera~ce of an offer, promise to pay, and 

6 -uthorization of the payme~t of money to officials of the 

7 overnment of the People's Republic of China, for the purpose of 

8 inflUencing the acts and decisions of ~aid foreign officials i~ 

9 heir official capacities; inducing said foreign officials to do 

10 nd omit to ~o acts in violation of their lawful duty; securing 

11 -n improper advantage; and inducing said foreign officials to use 

12 heir influence with instrumentalities 0: a foreign gcvernment to 

13 -ffect and infl\..!ence acts and decisions of said instrumentali~ies 

14 f a foreign government in order to assist defendant DPe TIANJIN 

15 n obtaining and retaining business for and with, and directing 

16 usiness to, defendant, to wit, DPC TIANJIN made payments to 

17 foreign governmerit officials, that is, doctors and laboratory 

18 ersonnel employed by hospitals ol-med by the governmer:t of the 

19 eople's Republic of China, in order to secure and maintain 

20 greements for the sale of i~~unodiagnostic systems, 

21 and other medical equipment, and caused to 

22 an electronic mail message from Tianjin, China to Los 

23 / / / 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 - 6-



1 Angeles, Califor~ia con~aining a monthly report concerning tte 

2 llowance of said payments. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

DEBRA WONG YANG 
United States Attorney 

STEVEN D. CLYMER 
Special Assistant United States 
Attorney 
Chief, Criminal Division 

JOSHUA R. HOCHBERG 
Chief, Fra~d Section 
Criminal Division 

HARK F. MENDELSOHN 
Depu~y Chief, Fraud Section 
Criminal Division 

ADRIAN D. MEBANE 
Trial Attorney 
Criminal Civision 
United State~_Department of Jus~ice 

-7-



EXHIBIT "2" 



1 

2 

3 

4 

EmrnIT2 

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

Should this matter have proceeded to trial, the United 

States would have proven, by admissible evidence, the following 
5 

facts beyond a reasonable doubt: 
6 

7 
1. Diagnostic Products Corporation ("DPC") was a U.S. 

8 
corporation established in 1971 with its principal place of 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

usiness in Los Angeles, California. Defendant DPC (TIANJIN) CO. 

TD., formerly Tianjin Cepu (DPC) Biotechnological and Medical 

Products, Inc. ("DPC TIANJIN") was a wholly-owned subsidiary of 

DPC. DPe TIANJIN had its principal place of business in Tianjin, 

hina and has been doing business in the People's Republic of 

~hina s~nce 1991. 

2. Among other things, DPC TIANJIN sold iIT~unodiagnostic 

ys~ems, irnrnunodiagnostic kits and other medical equipment to 

ospitals owned by the government of the People's Republic of 

hina. 

3. Since at least late 1991 through December 12, 2002, DPC 

IANJIN paid improper commissions to doctors and laboratory 

ersonnel who controlled the purchasing dec:sions for the 

internal medicine and nuclear medicine departments of certain 

ospitals, including hospitals owned by the government of the 

People's Republic of China ("the subjec~ hospitals"), for the 

urpose of obtaining or retaining business with the sub:ect 

ospitals. These improper commissions, typically between 3% and 

10% of sales, totaled approximately $1,623,326 from late 1991 



1 hrouqh Cecember 12, 2002. During most of this period, the 

2 ayments of these commissions were authorized by the General 

3 anager of JPC TIANJIN. !n most cases, the commissions were paid 

4 and hand-delivered by DPC TIANJIN salespersons to the 

5 ersonwho controlled purchas~ng decisions for the particular 

6 ospital departmenL. 

7 4. DPC TIANJIN recorded the commission payments on its 

8 ooks and records as "selling expenses." The Genera: Manager and 

9 Deputy General Manager of OPC TIANJIN regularly prepared and 

10 ubmitted to DPe financial statements which contained DPe 

11 IANJIN's sales expenses. ope TIANJIN routinely sent these 

12 statements by electronic mail message to ope's prinCipal place of 

13 usiness in Los Angeles, California. 

14 5. The General Manager of defendanL ope TIAN,JIN authorized 

15 he practice of paying the co~~ission payments to the employees 

16 f the hospitals. The General Manager of defendant DPe TIANJIN 

17 lso approved and caused to be approved the budgets for sales 

18 xpenses of DPe TIANJIN, which included the amounts DPC TIANJIN 

19 intended to pay to the employees of the hospitals in the 

20 following quarter or year. Defendant DPe TIANJIN caused to be 

21 sent approval of the proposed budgets by telephone, facsimile, 

22 nd electronic mail from Los Angeles, California, to Tianjin, 

23 hina. 

24 6. In or about November 2002, OPC TIANJIN caused to be 

25 sent an e:ectronic email message from Tianjin, China, to Los 

26 ngeles, California containing a monthly r~port concerning the 

27 

28 2 



1 llowance of payments to doctors and laboratory personnel 

2 mployed by hospitals owned by the Chinese government to assist 

3 DPC TIRNJIN in obtaini~g or re~aining agreements for the sale of 

4 immunodiagnostic systems, iIT~unoc~emis~ry kits and other medica: 

5 upplies. 

6 III 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 3 



Dated tAl. th" '') day of !Illy, 2 DOS. 

F~ tho Oll1tocl Statee 

8y: 
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CERTIFICATE OF ·SERVICE 

I, KAREN GLANZ, declare; 

That I am a citizen of the United States and resident or 

employed in Los Angeles County, California; that my business 

address is the Office of United Sta~es Attorney, United States 

Courtho~se, 312 North Spring Street, Los Angeles, California 

90012i that I am over the age of eighteen years, and am not a 

par~y to the above-entitled actioni 

That I am employed by the United States Attorney for the 

Central District of California who is a merr.ber of tr.e Bar of the 

United States District Court for the Central District of 

California, at whose direction I served a copy of: PLEA 
AGREEMENT FOR DPC (TIANJIN) CO. LTD. 

service was: 

[] Placed in a closed 
envelope, for collection 
and interoffice delivery 
addressed as follows: ~ 

[] By hand delivery 
addressed as follows; 

(J By messenger as follows: 

James R. Asperger 
O'Melveny and Myers, LLP 
400 South Hope Street 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 

(XX] Placed in a sealed 
envelope for collection and 
mailing via United States Mail, 
addressed as follows: 

[] By facsimile as follows: 

[J By federal express as follows: 

This Certificate is executed on May 20, 2005, at Los 

Angeles, California. 

I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is 

true and correct. 


	page 1
	page 2
	page 3
	page 4
	page 5
	page 6
	page 7
	page 8
	page 9
	page 10
	page 11
	page 12
	page 13
	page 14
	page 15
	page 16
	page 17
	page 18
	page 19
	page 20
	page 21
	page 22
	page 23
	page 24
	page 25
	page 26
	page 27
	page 28
	page 29
	page 30
	page 31
	page 32
	page 33
	page 34
	page 35
	page 36
	page 37
	page 38
	page 39
	page 40
	page 41
	page 42
	page 43
	page 44
	page 45
	page 46
	page 47
	page 48
	page 49
	page 50
	page 51
	page 52
	page 53
	page 54



